Unrestricted Document Pack

Princes Road

Maldon
Nr‘" X Essex CM9 5DL
30 July 2025 MALDON www.maldon.gov.uk

DISTRICT COUNCIL

& disability
B confident

EMPLOYER

APOLOGIES: Committee Services CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk Doug Wilkinson
Dear Councillor
You are summoned to attend the extraordinary meeting of the;
COUNCIL
on THURSDAY 7 AUGUST 2025 at 7.30 pm
in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon.

Please Note: All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’'s YouTube channel for
those wishing to observe remotely.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

RSN

Chief Executive

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers
are available via the Council's website www.maldon.gov.uk.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive

AGENDA

COUNCIL

THURSDAY 7 AUGUST 2025

1. Chairperson's notices

2. Apologies for Absence

3. Minutes - 10 July 2025 (Pages 5 - 20)
To confirm the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 10 July 2025 (copy enclosed).

4. Declaration of Interest
To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other
Registrable interests and Non-Registrable Interests relating to items of business on
the agenda having regard to paragraph 9 and Appendix B of the Code of Conduct for
Members.
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).

5. Council Structure Review (Pages 21 - 26)
To consider the report of the Chief Executive, (copy enclosed).

6. Business by reason of special circumstances considered by the Chairperson to
be urgent

7. Exclusion of the Public and Press
To resolve that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

8. Management of Resources (Pages 27 - 42)

To consider the report of the Chief Executive, (copy enclosed).

Page 2
For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/

NOTICES

Recording of Meeting
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’'s website any
part of this meeting held in open session.

Fire

We do not have any fire alarm testing scheduled for this meeting. In the event of a fire, a
siren will sound. Please use either of the two marked fire escape routes. Once out of the
building please proceed to the designated muster point located on the grass verge by the
police station entrance. Please gather there and await further instruction. If you feel you may
need assistance to evacuate the building, please make a member of Maldon District Council
staff aware.

Health and Safety
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.

Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV)
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV.

Lift
Please be aware, there is not currently lift access to the Council Chamber.

Page 3
For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

MINUTES of
COUNCIL
10 JULY 2025
PRESENT
Chairperson Councillor K M H Lagan
Councillors M G Bassenger, V J Bell, S J Burwood, S Dodsley, J Driver,
A Fittock, A S Fluker, L J Haywood, J C Hughes,
W J Laybourn, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, M G Neall,
R H Siddall, U C G Siddall-Norman, N D Spenceley,
P L Spenceley, W Stamp, CC, E L Stephens, J C Stilts,
N J Swindle, M E Thompson and L L Wiffen
1. CHAIRPERSON'S NOTICES

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and went through some general
housekeeping arrangements for the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D O Bown, J R Burrell-Cook, M
F L Durham CC, A M Lay, R G Pratt and S White.

3. MINUTES OF THE STATUTORY ANNUAL COUNCIL - 15 MAY 2025

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Statutory Annual meeting of the Council held on 15
May 2025 be approved and confirmed.

4. MINUTES - 17 JUNE 2025

RESOLVED

0] that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 17 June 2025 be
received.

Minute No. 5 — Chairperson’s Announcements
Councillor S Dodsley advised that reference to her in the first sentence should refer to
‘Dodsley’ and not Dodson. The Chairperson advised that this would be corrected.

Minute 8 — Maldon District Growth Options

Councillor A S Fluker queried the resolution in respect of this Minute item as he felt that
further testing on Options 3 and 5 with the inclusion of Althorne and Land at Stow
Maries had been agreed. In response the Chairperson advised that the sites referred to
were included as part of Option 5 and therefore the Minutes would stand as written.

Page 5



10.

RESOLVED

(i) that subject to the above amendment the Minutes of the meeting of the Council
held on 17 June 2025 be confirmed.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were none.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There were none.

CHAIRPERSON'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

In accordance with Part 4 Rule 8(3) of the Constitution, the Chairperson advised that
he would be suspending the need to stand.

The Chairperson referred to having recently attended the heavy military vehicles event
at Promenade Park with other Members. He referred to it being a joyful occasion, with
an enormous turnout and how the highlight had been a fly past by a Lancaster bomber.
The Chairperson felt the event had showed the District off and thanked everyone
involved.

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE - 12 JUNE 2025

The Chairperson advised the Council that the recommendations coming forward from
this meeting of the Strategy and Resources Committee were the subject of separate
reports on the agenda:

. Agenda Item 17 — Budget Growth Request
. Agenda Item 18 — Princes Road — Replacement Fire and Building Security
Systems

MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL

Councillor A S Fluker raised a query regarding publication of the Strategy and
Resources Committee minutes from the meeting on 12 June 2025 and proposed that
noting of these Minutes be held over to the next Council meeting. Subsequently the
Chairperson agreed that any Minutes not published would be brought back to the next
Council meeting.

The Council noted that with the exception of any Minutes not published, the list of
Committees that had met before and since the last meeting of the Council, up until
Wednesday 2 July 2025 for which Minutes had been published.

STATEMENT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Councillor R H Siddall, Leader of the Council (the Leader) made a statement (attached
at APPENDIX 1 to these Minutes) setting out the Council’s report and programme for

Page 6



the remainder of the municipal year. The statement referred to a number of areas,
including:

. the appointment of Mr Doug Wilkinson as the Council’'s new Chief Executive,
following a review of the Council’s corporate leadership team structure. Mr
Wilkinson had been working with the Local Government Association to
undertake a review of the Council’s organisational structure, and this would be
considered at an extraordinary meeting of the Council on 7 August 2025.

° Community investment in both Burnham-on-Crouch and Maldon, which had
been funded through the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) and S106
developer contributions. The Leader commented on the work of the Council’s
officers who through administration of the UKSPF had supported projects
totaling over £831k and £717k from the Rural Community Council for Essex.
The Council would continue to invest in projects across the district as well as
enhancing its parks and assets.

. The new Leisure Contract with Places Leisure brought changes but also a
number of benefits, including delivery of outreach work across the district. The
Council would look to ensure that health and financial benefits were realised.
The Leader advised that he had asked the Corporate Leadership Team to
undertake a post-implementation review of the contract and would be asking
officers to bring forward a Terms of Reference for a new Wellbeing and Leisure
Working Group.

° How the One Maldon District partnership continued to play a strategic role in
helping the Council bring together senior representatives from local statutory,
voluntary and private sectors.

° The work being done following the appointment of Culture Engine who would be
supporting the development of a Culture and Heritage Strategy for the District.

o The Council had published the draft accounts for 2024 / 25 which set out its
position at the end of 2024 / 25 and the Leader welcomed Mr Ben Jay, the
Council’'s new Chief Finance Officer and Section 151 Officer. On behalf of
Members, he thanked the Finance team for their excellent work in managing the
Council’s finances.

o The forthcoming changes as part of Devolution and Local Government
Reorganisation (LGR) and the business case options that would be submitted to
the Government for consideration. The Council would be receiving a report on
this at its extraordinary meeting on 25 September 2025.

. Work was taking place to replace play equipment at the West Maldon
Community Centre as a tribute to Flo Shaughnessy and the service she had
given to the local community.

. The work of the Save Maldon’s Medical Services Group and all those who had
supported the fight to retain medical services at St. Peter’s hospital. The
decision of the Integrated Care Board on the future of St. Peters would be
known in the next few days.

. The changes to the National Planning Policy Framework, particularly the
Council’s Five-Year Housing Land Supply and the work being done by Officers
to address these challenges.

The Leader thanked Members and Officers of the Council for the continued hard work
and dedication they had put into the delivery of the Council’s public services over the

last year. He was keen that the Council continued to build on the positive steps taken

to allow the Maldon District to grow and prosper and hoped Members would share his
vision for this.

Page 7



The Chairperson advised that there were currently three Leaders of the Opposition and
in accordance with Procedure Rule 1(12) he would allow them each five minutes to
respond to the statement made by the Leader of the Council.

Councillor J C Stilts, Leader of the Maldon District Support Group, advised how her
Group welcome the organisational review being undertaken by the Chief Executive,
along with future smart ways of working. She referred to investment in Promenade
Park and hoped this would be extended to other parts of the District. In respect of the
Leisure Contract, Councillor Stilts asked for reassurance that all groups had been
accommodated with any concerns addressed. She thanked Officers for their hard work
in delivering all grants to the community and supported the Leaders’ suggestion of a
Health, Well-being and Leisure Working Group. In congratulating the Section 151
Officer on his appointment thanks were given to both him and the last Officer for
bringing forward early the draft accounts for auditing. The Group looked forward to
receiving all information regarding LGR, including the evidence relating to both the
three and five authority models being proposed to form a beneficial outcome for the
residents of the District. Highlighting the need to ensure that housing needs were met
for everyone in the District, Councillor Stilts commented how her Group looked forward
to the challenges of working with other Groups to shape the future of the District.
Finally, the Group hoped that the new Local Development Plan had infrastructure,
schools, doctors, transports and connectivity at its forefront.

Councillor S J N Morgan, Leader of the Conservative Group, thanked the Leader of the
Council for his speech and commended the Chief Executive for his work including that
coming forward in his reorganisation of the Council. On behalf of his Group, Councillor
Morgan welcomed Mr Jay and thanked all officers for their hard work over the year and
looked forward to future working with them. He agreed with the Leader that the
achievements over the year had been done with all four political Groups and non-
aligned Members to move the District forward and develop projects. The Group was
encouraged that all possibilities were being considered in respect of LGR. Councillor
Morgan highlighted the recent cancelling of the A12 road widening and the Group
noted the significant implications this would have on wards, the District and county. In
conclusion, Councillor Morgan, referred to the forthcoming municipal year, working
together and putting residents’ interests forward.

Councillor J Driver, Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group, thanked the Leader of the
Council for his speech and referred to the growth of the Liberal Democrat Group with
the recent election of Councillor Sarah Dodsley. He advised that the Groups
commitment continued, to work collaboratively with all parties and independent
Members to ensure stability at such a crucial time in the Council’s history. The Council
had much to celebrate at this time, including the new pontoon at Burnham-on-Crouch,
investment in play equipment and skateboard parks at Burnham-on-Crouch and
Maldon and repairs to the amphitheatre. Councillor Driver advised that he had recently
attended a One Maldon District partnership meeting and commented that the work of
the partnership needed wider recognition. He noted how the UKSPF and Rural
England Prosperity Fund had helped to deliver a number of projects across the District.
The Group acknowledged the work of Mr Jay and the finance team and how the
Council must continue to be careful whilst also being bold in its desire to use its
reserves to benefit residents. The Council faced pressures from Government housing
targets and there was an urgent need for a robust Local Development Plan. Councillor
Driver highlighted how the Council had taken a clear stand on St. Peter’s Hospital and
must continue to keep the pressure to secure the range of health services required by
its community. Progress in respect of LGR should not be undermined by political
distractions as residents deserved a Council focused on their interest. In conclusion,
Councillor Driver referred to the Council having many opportunities and how continuing
to work together would ensure great success for it.

Page 8



11.

12.

QUESTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE 6(3) OF WHICH NOTICE
HAS BEEN GIVEN

There were none.

COMMUNITY GRANT FUND

The Council considered the report of the Chief Executive seeking approval for the
establishment and operational framework of the new Maldon District Council (MDC)
Community Grant Scheme, including its funding priorities, tiered structure, eligibility
criteria and assessment methodology.

The report reminded Members of the agreement in April 2025 that the proposed
projects be delivered through the Maldon District's UK Shared Prosperity Fund
(UKSPF) allocation with 100% match funding provided from the Council’s reserves.
This included the delivery of a Community Grant Scheme.

A Community Grant Scheme aimed to streamline and enhance the Council’s ability to
provide financial assistance to a broad range of local organisations and the proposed
“‘Where Quality of Life Matters Grant Scheme” had been designed to fund local
initiatives that directly contributed to the four resident, community and business
focused Corporate Plan Priorities. The report provided further detail regarding the
Scheme and Appendix 1 set out the proposed applicant guidance, including funding
priorities, eligibility criteria, what could and couldn’t be supported, tiered grant values,
the application process and deadlines. Appendix 2 set out the tiered scoring matrices
which would form the robust and transparent assessment process.

An addendum circulated prior to the meeting provided updates to the report and
Appendices following feedback from Members.

The Leader of the Council presented the report before the Lead Specialist Prosperity
took Members through a detailed presentation which set out the types of projects that
could be taken forward, the application window, the application type, funding levels,
scoring matrices and proposed scoring panel compaosition.

The Chairperson moved the recommendation set out in the report and this was duly
seconded.

Councillor W Stamp advised that she didn’t agree with the proposal to fund businesses
as the Council supported them in other ways. She referred to the work she had been
involved with to section S106 funding for a project in Burnham-on-Crouch and felt that
Community Grant Fund monies should be used by Parish / Town Councils and
Community Groups.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor Stamp requested a recorded
vote. This was duly seconded.

The Chief Executive gave reassurance on the format of the proposed approvals
process and that this would ensure independence and fairness in governance. He
advised that Officers hoped Ward Members would encourage community groups to bid
for funding.

Page 9



A lengthy debate ensued and in response to a number of concerns and queries raised,
the following information was provided by Officers:

. The Scheme had been based on the UKSPF but had been changed to
encourage communities to bid for the grants first.

o The small grant didn’t relate to the size of an organisation, it was about the size
of the bid. There was no limit in terms of bids.

. It was hoped that the scheme would give opportunity to work with villages,
towns etc. and to get them to come forward with bids for these grants.

. The framework and governance process for which approval was sought
included criteria for the scoring mechanism which would provide reassurance
that all bids were scored fairly and efficiently.

. It was hoped that Ward Members would support projects in their area, although
it was appreciated that there may be occasional conflicts, and Officers
highlighted the point at which Ward Members were asked for their support.

Councillor A S Fluker proposed that the Chairperson put the recommendations.

Councillor M G Bassenger suggested that consideration be given to four Members
being on the Assurance Panel (detailed within Appendix 2 to the report). Speaking in
support of this Councillor Stamp proposed that Councillors A Fittock and P L Spenceley
be two of the members that sat of the board to finalise the applications. This proposal
was duly seconded.

The Chairperson then moved an amendment to the recommendation, to update
Appendix 2 to include four Members of the Council on the Assurance Panel. This was
duly seconded.

The Chairperson then put the amendment to vote, and the voting was as follows:

For the recommendation:

Councillors M G Bassenger, V J Bell, S J Burwood, S Dodsley, J Driver, A Fittock, A S
Fluker, L J Haywood, J C Hughes, K M H Lagan, W J Laybourn, S J N Morgan, C P
Morley, M G Neall, R H Siddall, U G C Siddall-Norman, N D Spenceley, P L Spenceley,
W Stamp, E L Stephens, J C Stilts, N J Swindle, M E Thompson and L L Wiffen.

Against the recommendation: There were none.

Abstention: There were none.
The Chairperson advised that the amendment was therefore agreed.

At this point Councillor Stamp withdrew her request for a recorded vote on the
substantive motion.

The Chairperson then put the substantive motion to approve the Grant Scheme,
accompanying applicant guidance (Appendix 1) and the amended tired scoring matrix
(Appendix 2). This was duly agreed.

The Chairperson thanked the Lead Specialist Prosperity for her excellent hard work
and speed of which things were pulled together. He then called for nominations of the
four Members to sit on the Assurance Panel.

Councillor Stamp nominated Councillor A Fittock and P L Spenceley. Councillor J C
Stilts nominated Councillor L J Hawyood and Councillor R H Siddall nominated

Page 10



13.

Councillor M E Thompson. These nominations were duly seconded. The Chairperson
put them to the Council, and they were agreed.

RESOLVED that the establishment of the "Where Quality of Life Matters Grant
Scheme" be approved, as detailed in the report, the accompanying Applicant Guidance
(attached as Appendix 1 to the report) and the tiered scoring matrix (Appendix 2 to the
report updated to include Councillors A Fittock, L J Haywood, P L Spenceley and M E
Thompson on the Assurance Panel).

PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER CONSULTATION EVALUATION

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive seeking Members’
approval to renew the current Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) relating to the
powers for managing dog control in specified places within the district. If agreed the
order would be valid for three years from 18 July 2025.

The report advised that implementation of the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act
2014 by the Government in 2014 had given local authorities and the Police more
effective powers to tackle Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB). Amongst these tools were
PSPO’s which provided Councils with a flexible power to implement local restrictions to
address a range of ASB issues in public places in order to prevent future problems.
Further details of PSPOs was set out in the report.

The proposed PSPO was attached at Appendix 1 to the report and had been informed
by a public consultation. Details of the public consultation process and the results of
the consultation were set out in the report and Appendix 3, including comments from
the consultation.

The report set out the proposed conditions of the PSPO, including those which resulted
in no change, changes to existing controls and new controls proposed.

Following a presentation of the report by the Assistant Director - Customer Services
and Operations, the Chairperson moved the recommendations set out in the report.
These were duly seconded.

In response to a question regarding signage the Assistant Director advised that the
Council would be making amendments to existing signage, as signage was critical, and
publicity would follow this to ensure that dog walkers were aware. It was also noted that
a soft launch was proposed following approval of the PSPO.

The Chairperson then put the recommendations which were duly agreed.

RESOLVED

() That Members note the outcome of the public consultation as set out at
Appendix 3 to the report;

(i) that the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) (Appendix 1 to the report) be
renewed for three years from 18 July 2025;

(iii) that the amended conditions as set out in paragraphs 6.2.1 — 6.2.4 of the report,
be agreed;

(iv) that the new conditions as set out at paragraphs 6.3.1 — 6.3.2 of the report, be
agreed.

Page 11



14.

15.

16.

RESPONSE TO GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON CHANGES TO PLANNING
COMMITTEES

The Council considered the report of the Chairperson of the Performance, Governance
and Audit Committee (PGA) Working Group seeking Members’ approval of the
Council’s response to the Government’s consultation on changes to Planning
Committees.

Once the Planning and Infrastructure Bill (published in March 2025) gained Royal
Assent this would grant the Secretary of State (SOS) powers to instruct, by
Regulations, which types of applications should be delegated to planning officers and
which should be determined by a planning Committee. On 25 May 2025 the
Government published a consultation on its proposals for how this would work.

Councillor W Stamp, Chairperson of the PGA Working Group, introduced the report
and advised that the Working Group had met on 24 June 2025 to discuss the proposals
and form a recommended response (attached as Appendix A to the report) for the
Council to consider and approve. Councillor Stamp proposed that the recommendation
set out in the report be approved. This proposal was duly seconded.

The Assistant Director — Planning and Implementation presented the report and
highlighted how the scope of the consultation affected the delegation of planning
functions related to development management. He highlighted the areas affected and
how if the changes came into effect there was legislation in the Planning and
Infrastructure Bill (currently going through Parliament) which would bring in a number of
new powers for the Secretary of State. He then proceeded to take Members through
these new powers.

In response to a question regarding the suggested Planning Committee membership of
11 Members and how the required training would work in terms of appointing
substitutes, the Assistant Director explained that the PGA Working Group had felt more
than 11 Members would require training, although this was open for future debate. The
Government had outlined that a Planning Committee could have to 11 Members and
would have to be quorate to operate.

The Chairperson put the proposal in the name of Councillor Stamp and this was duly
agreed.

RESOLVED that the consultation response (attached at Appendix A to the report) be
approved for submission to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government by 23 July 2025.

BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES CONSIDERED BY THE
CHAIRPERSON TO BE URGENT

The Chairperson announced that in accordance with Section 100b(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 he had agreed to allow the Chief Executive to raise an urgent
item of business in response to the recent Council decision to receive an update on
Devolution and Local Government Reorganisation at every meeting.

DEVOLUTION AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION UPDATE

The Chief Executive provided an update on Devolution explaining that work continued
at pace with workshops beginning the following week. Essex County Council (ECC)

Page 12



17.

had organised a broader summit on 16 July and Officers were due to attend an
economic growth session on 17 July. Work continued to prepare the processes and the
target operating model in readiness for day one of the Mayoral County Combined
Authority. The Chief Executive advised that there was no feedback from the
Government on the Devolution consultation response.

With regards to Local Government Reorganisation (LGR), Members were advised that
ECC had confirmed they would be progressing a three authority case which would see
Maldon District Council form a large unitary with Tendering, Colchester and Braintree
Councils, serving a population size of 578,000 people. It was understood that Thurrock
Council may also be progressing a four unitary authority case and Rochford were
exploring a three / four unitary model. The five unitary authority business case was on
track, content had been drafted with a complete draft being available by the end of
July. The five unitary model consultation had started on 26 June and as of the previous
week had seen over 2,600 responses.

The Council’s Devolution and LGR Member Working Group had held its first meeting
and was due to meet again on 21 July, with two further Working Groups planned
between now and the submission of the proposal on 26 September. This would give
opportunity for Members to view the draft business case and for the Council to provide
feedback. All staff had received a briefing on Devolution and LGR through the Chief
Executive Connects meeting this week and the Chief Executive explained that these
would continue on a monthly basis to provide an update to staff on progress.

At this point the Chief Executive referred to the Assistant Director - Strategy,
Partnerships and Communications to go through the presentation which had been
circulated prior to the meeting.

The Assistant Director - Strategy, Partnerships and Communications then gave a short
presentation which provided Members with the latest update in respect of Devolution
and Local Government Reorganisation.

In response to questions raised, the Leader of the Council advised that the Council had
now received invites to all meetings relating to the three authority model. These
meetings had been scheduled by ECC every two weeks, and he would be attending
along with the Chief Executive. The Council had initially not been invited to these
meetings, but this had since changed, and the Leader confirmed that Maldon District
Council would be working with all Leaders and Chief Executives in Essex on both the
three and five authority models.

In response to further comments, the Chairperson reminded the Council of the
Devolution Working Group where further detail would be available.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2
and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest
test.

Page 13



18.

19.

BUDGET GROWTH REQUEST

The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive seeking approval
of a budget to fund a full time role to support the delivery of a service detailed within the
report.

The report provided background information regarding the service and the reason
behind a reduction in resources as part of the 2023 / 24 budget savings programme.
The current position and why it was not possible to deliver the service without
additional resources was also set out in the report.

It was noted that the Strategy and Resources Committee had considered this report at
its meeting on 12 June 2025 and recommended that the requested budget be agreed.

The Chairperson moved the recommendation set out in the report. This was duly
seconded and agreed.

RESOLVED that a budget of £43,100 to enable the recruitment of a full time
permanent Officer (as set out in the report), be approved.

PRINCES ROAD - REPLACEMENT FIRE AND BUILDING SECURITY SYSTEMS

The Council considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive seeking Members’
approval to drawdown funds to replace fire and building security systems.

The report provided background information following consideration of a report in
March 2025 by the Strategy and Resources Committee (S&R) to replace fire and
security systems at Princes Road. The Committee had made a nhumber of
recommendations to the Council; however, it was noted that when considered by the
Council in April 2025 they were not agreed. Further detailed information in respect of
each of the systems was set out in the report.

It was noted that on 12 June 2025 the S&R had considered this report and
recommended to the Council that the recommendations set out within it be approved.

The Chairperson drew Members’ attention to an addendum to the report that had been
circulated prior to the meeting and provided further supporting information to aid
Members in their consideration of the report.

The Deputy Chief Executive presented the report and took Members through each
section outlining the reasons behind the request for drawdown from Council Reserves.
The Chairperson then moved each recommendation individually and each was duly
seconded.

A lengthy debate on each request ensued and in response to questions raised by
Members Officers provided further information and clarification.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor A S Fluker requested a
recorded vote. This was duly seconded.

The Leader of the Council clarified that the amounts detailed were the maximum
amounts. As each area progressed this would be presented back to the Strategic Asset
Working Group, along with the figures, before being reported to the Strategy and
Resources Committee and the Council.

Further debate ensued.

Page 14



At this point, in accordance with Procedure Rule 1(6)(i) the Chairperson advised that
he would be allowing the meeting to continue past 10pm.

The Chairperson then put recommendation (i), as detailed in the report, to the Council
and the voting was as follows:

For the recommendation:

Councillors M G Bassenger, V J Bell, S J Burwood, S Dodsley, J Driver, A Fittock, L J
Haywood, J C Hughes, W J Laybourn, R H Siddall, N D Spenceley, P L Spenceley, E L
Stephens, J C Stilts, N J Swindle and M E Thompson.

Against the recommendation:
Councillors A S Fluker, KM H Lagan, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, M G Neall, UG C
Siddall-Norman, W Stamp and L L Wiffen.

Abstention: None.
The Chairperson declared that recommendation (i) was agreed.

The Chairperson then put recommendation (ii), as detailed in the report, to the Council
and the voting was as follows:

For the recommendation:
Councillors V J Bell, S J Burwood, S Dodsley, J Driver, A Fittock, J C Hughes, R H
Siddall, N D Spenceley, P L Spenceley, E L Stephens and N J Swindle.

Against the recommendation:

Councillors M G Bassenger, A S Fluker, L J Haywood, K M H Lagan, W J Laybourn, S
J N Morgan, C P Morley, M G Neall, U G C Siddall-Norman, W Stamp, M E Thompson
and L L Wiffen.

Abstention:
Councillor J C Stilts.

The Chairperson declared that recommendation (ii) was not agreed.

The Chairperson then put recommendation (iii), as detailed in the report, to the Council
and the voting was as follows:

For the recommendation:

Councillors M G Bassenger, V J Bell, S J Burwood, S Dodsley, J Driver, A Fittock, L J
Haywood, J C Hughes, K M H Lagan, W J Laybourn, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, R H
Siddall, U G C Siddall-Norman, N D Spenceley, P L Spenceley, W Stamp, E L
Stephens, J C Stilts, N J Swindle, M E Thompson and L L Wiffen.

Against the recommendation:
Councillors A S Fluker and M G Neall.

Abstention: None.
The Chairperson declared that recommendation (iii) was therefore agreed.

The Chairperson then put recommendation (iv), as detailed in the report, to the Council
and the voting was as follows:

Page 15



For the recommendation:
Councillors S J Burwood, S Dodsley, J Driver, A Fittock, J C Hughes, R H Siddall, N D
Spenceley, P L Spenceley, E L Stephens, J C Stilts and N J Swindle.

Against the recommendation:

Councillors V J Bell, A’ S Fluker, L J Haywood, K M H Lagan, W J Laybourn, SJ N
Morgan, C P Morley, M G Neall, U G C Siddall-Norman, W Stamp, M E Thompson and
L L Wiffen.

Abstention:
Councillor M G Bassenger.

The Chairperson declared that recommendation (iv) was not agreed.

The Chairperson put recommendation (v), as set out in the report, and this was agreed
by assent.

RESOLVED

(1) that the drawdown from Council Reserves as set out in Section 4 of the report
be approved to deliver the scoped requirements and mitigate the identified risks
illustrated;

(i) that the drawdown from Council Reserves as set out in Section 6 of the report
be approved to deliver the scoped requirements and mitigate the identified risks
illustrated,

(iii) That progress on the projects be reported back to the Strategic Assets Working
Group.

There being no other items of business the Chairperson closed the meeting at 10.07 pm.

KMH LAGAN
CHAIRPERSON

Page 16



Minute Annex

APPENDIX 1

Chairman, Members

The leaders speech gives us an opportunity to reflect on our progress as a Council
over the last twelve months, and | think a good summary would be a year of
Investment, Partnership and Change. With the changes being implemented by the
government, this and the following years will be further challenges and some great
opportunities for our council.

This time last year | said, ‘| hoped as councillors that we use our strategic and
preventative powers to improve prosperity and wellbeing in our communities’. | think
when we can reflect on that, and say that by working together we have certainly
done that.

Last year, we took the opportunity to review the structure of our Corporate
Leadership Team and this concluded with the appointment of Mr Wilkinson as Chief
Executive and Mr Dodson appointed as Deputy Chief Executive, this was followed by
the retirement of Mr Holmes.

Mr Wilkinson has been us with for nearly 9 months and he has made a difference
both internally and externally, which has changed the dynamics of the organisation.
As a continuation of this process, we as members gave him the steer to continue
with the process and through consultation, he has been working with the Local
Government Association (LGA) to undertake a review of our organisational structure.

This review, will be considered by Members on 7 August, we need to ensure that the
council is in the best possible position for the future.

Community Investment

Over the last 12 months, we have significantly invested in our Community with the
installation of a replacement pontoon in Burnham-on-Crouch, new play equipment
supported through the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) and a much improved
skateboard park which was made possible through S106 developer contributions.

In Maldon, we have seen replacement play equipment in the Promenade Park partly
funded by UKSPF, and a new skateboard park in West Maldon and soon to start, will
be a much improved skateboard park in Promenade Park to replace the existing one,
again these have been possible through S106 developer contributions. We will also
see the completion of the re-designed Amphitheatre. Our Officers are currently
exploring opportunities to increase the use of this, for example by buskers and local
bands to use it over the summer. If you know a local band or performer who you
think could use this opportunity, then please contact officers.

Leisure Contract

The announcement about the changes at Places Leisure have planned for
Blackwater Leisure Centre has been challenging. There will be a lot of benefits from
the changes and we need to ensure that the provider and officers, manage the next
18 months effectively.

The contract will deliver a range of outreach work across the district focusing on
some harder to reach individuals and encouraging a healthy and active lifestyle.

Page 17



APPENDIX 1

Ultimately the improvements planned by our contractor Places Leisure will provide
both substantial financial benefits to this Council and our successors. We need to
ensure that the health and financial benefits are realised.

| have asked CLT to ensure that a post implementation review is undertaken, so that
we can establish lessons learned from the process. | also believe that we need a
health, well being and leisure working group should be established and we should
ask officers to bring forward a TOR for Septembers full council meeting.

UKSPF and REP Funding

These projects would not have been made possible without the tremendous work of
the council’s officers who, through the administration of the UK Shared Prosperity
Fund have supported projects totalling £831,013 last year.

We were also successful in delivering a number of projects through the Rural
England Prosperity Fund, working with our partners at the Rural Community Council
for Essex amounting to £317,069 which has supported 20 organisations across the
District. This investment in our community is set to continue with further support for
projects across the District under the next round of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund.

Tonight subject to Members agreement, the ‘Where Quality of Life Matters’
Community Grant scheme, which will further support some of our communities
across the District will shortly be launched.

OMD

The One Maldon District partnership continues to play a strategic role in helping us
to bring together senior representatives from the local statutory, voluntary and
private sectors.

One such example of collaboration, is our annual community wellbeing festival,
Ufest, which is scheduled for Friday 15 August with over 80 of our partners providing
information, activities, advice and entertainment throughout the day.

Culture and Heritage Strategy

We can be proud of the eclectic mix of culture and heritage across the District,
however what has been missing from the council has been our own Culture and
Heritage strategy, which brings together all the elements across the District and
opens the doors to potential funding opportunities.

We have just started work on this strategy, with the appointment of Cultural Engine,
who will support the development and delivery of our new Culture and Heritage
Strategy. A crucial element of the development of the strategy will be member
involvement, especially in what we want the outcomes, events and how we work
across the district. There will be workshops and briefings with the members, to
ensure we take the lead in its development.

MTES update

Turning to our financial position. Members will be aware, that at the end of the last
financial year, we were in a positive position, reporting an £853k underspend against
budget. This leaves the Council with a strong balance sheet position from which to
engage with future challenges and aspirations.

Page 18



APPENDIX 1

In the past week the government has published its Fairer Funding report and we are
beginning to establish the impact that it may have on the council. From initial
analysis it appears that it will put Maldon at a disadvantage with drop in our funding.
We therefore need to be careful and budget realistically so that we can continue to
secure the benefits we want to deliver for residents.

| am pleased to say that the Council has published the draft (pre-audit) accounts
already, ahead of many other councils, setting out the position at the end of 2024/25
— knowing clearly where we are is important in helping us to plan for the future.

| would like welcome Mr Jay to the organisation and this is the first time we have had
a permanent S151 officer for several years. On behalf of members | would like to
thank our finance team for their excellent work in managing the Council’s finances in
such and exemplary manner.

Devolution and Local Government Reorganisation

Both Devolution and Local Government Reorganisation are progressing at pace. The
Council is involved in both and is actively involved in helping to shape the 5 unitary
authority model. We are cooperating and collaborating with those authorities who are
working on the 3 model, and myself and the CEX attending a meeting on Monday.

All options, whether if that be 3, 4 or 5 unitary councils will be considered by
government once the Greater Essex proposal is submitted at the end of September.
The report that will be presented to full council will consider all business cases that
are being submitted.

We will be working with partner authorities, in both the 3 and 5 models, to ensure we
are ready once the government makes the decision. Myself and Mr Wilkinson will
therefore be working not only Chelmsford and Brentwood leadership, but also
Colchester Braintree and Tendring. As this work progresses, it will be important to
involve all group leaders.

Ultimately the government will decide on what they consider to be the best option or
options. That will then be put to public consultation. We must do our best to support
officers in shaping and preparing for major reorganisation. Our aim is to ensure we
get the best result for our residents and for this council to part of a well set up future
unitary.

Looking ahead

Chairman, whilst the changes in the local government landscape will be challenging
not least in the additional workload for us all, but we will continue to strive to deliver
for our community over this next municipal year.

| am also very pleased to announce that work is in hand to replace the play
equipment at West Maldon Community Centre, as a fitting tribute to Flo Shaunessy
who served her community so well. This project will be presented to Strategy and
Resources.

We will continue to support our community with the district's UK Shared and Rural
England Prosperity Fund which will see an additional £456,223 investment from
Government in 2025/2026.

Page 19



APPENDIX 1

We will continue to invest in projects across the district, enhancing the promenade
park and our assets across the district. Exploring opportunities to improve the
museum, hythe, seating area and creating a memorial walk. Ensuring that over the
next few years we invest in our play areas and parks and enhance these assets.
Officers have developed an excellent plan and this will enable us to continue to
invest our visitor attractions.

In the next few days (17 July), we will know what the decision of the Integrated Care
Board (ICB) will be for St. Peter’s and at this point | know that as members we would
like to commend all those who have supported the fight to retain medical services
and in particular the ‘Save Maldon’s Medical Services’ group who were instrumental
in making the ICB think again, We await the decision of the ICB with interest.

We all know the challenges we face due to the changes in the NPPF and the impact
it had on our 5 year housing land supply. We are working with officers to ensure that
we are comfortable with our supply number. Our local plan options are now being
modelled, and will establish what sites are possible to be included. In the autumn
members will have the opportunity to shape the district with workshops on our design
guides and the principles of how we will create a district for the next 15 years.

The Council remains concerned that these nationally imposed targets have been
given to us without any regard to our sensitive local environment, nor the reality of
our infrastructure which has been struggling to keep pace with the demands placed
on it. The news that the A12 widening has been cancelled by the Government has
come at the wrong time in the context of higher housing numbers and Maldon, like
other councils in the East | am sure, will continue to lobby the Government for better
transport, health, education and social infrastructure and not just new homes.

Chairman, | would like to end by thanking all Members, and all officers of the
Council, for the continued hard work and dedication they have put into the delivery of
our public services over the last year.

| know we are all eager for us to build on the positive steps we have taken, to allow
the Maldon District to grow and prosper further over the coming year. That by
working together we can support this approach and enable us to realise our vision
and leave the council in a better place for future changes and help us realise the
fantastic opportunities for the district and all those who are lucky enough to live, work
or visit, the place we call home.

Page 20



Agenda ltem 5

REPORT of
CHIEF EXECUTIVE (HEAD OF PAID SERVICE)

to

COUNCIL (EXTRAORDINARY)
7 AUGUST 2025

COUNCIL STRUCTURE REVIEW

1.

11

1.2

1.3

3.1

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Head of Paid Service (HOPS) is a Statutory Role whose obligations are set out
in section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. The HOPS is under a
duty to report to the Council their proposals for the organisation structure,
management and staff grades to ensure the Council can effectively deliver its
services and functions. The role of HOPS at Maldon District Council is undertaken by
the Chief Executive.

This report sets out the findings of the organisational review undertaken by the Chief
Executive and supported by the Local Government Association (LGA). This report
details proposals of a new structure that aligns with the Local Government Authority
(LGA) Decision Making Approach (DMA) industry good practice. The proposals will
ensure the organisation is fit for purpose going forward to deliver on the corporate
priorities by simplifying the structure to improve efficiency and getting the
organisation well placed for any Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) in future
years.

Further details of the outcomes of this review will be provided as part of a private and
confidential paper to the Council. This report allows the public sharing of the basis for
the structural review of the Council.

RECOMMENDATION

That Members receive the engagement and findings of the Chief Executive and Local
Government Association’s (LGA) Decision Making Approach (DMA) organisational
review.

BACKGROUND: HISTORICAL CONTEXT — STAFFING STRUCTURE 2018 TO
DATE

In 2018 the Council embarked a Whole Council Transformation ‘Ignite Model 2018’
that had digital by default at the heart of its approach with the expectation of
delivering a prominent level of channel shift and self-service. It took apart the
traditional functionally based service structures that are the most common delivery
model and reallocated resources broadly split into specialists and caseworkers
through separate functional and operational leadership. At this time, a Chief
Executive role was removed from the Council’s structure and in its place was put
three Directors (Tier 1) and seven Managers (Tier 2).

Our Vision: Where Qua"té({ Life Matters

Page



3.2

3.3

3.4

In 2023, the Council agreed to adapt the structure within the Service Delivery
Directorate to realign some team responsibilities, removing the specialist and
caseworker model. This was delivered within existing resources and managed as a
‘lift and shift’ to redefine roles within their specialisms and management
accountability. This structural change redefined Manager (Tier 2) roles as Assistant
Directors and added a further Assistant Director for Planning.

In 2023-24, a review by the East of England Local Government Association (EELGA),
(now Local Government East (LGE)) requested by the Leader of the Council, was
completed. This considered the Corporate Leadership Team i.e. the three Director
model. A Council Working Group was formed, Corporate Leadership Review Working
Group, and the Council confirmed a recommendation to remove the three Director
model and instead re-introduce to the Council a Chief Executive.

In May 2024, a report of the Monitoring Officer to the Council identified findings of the
Working Group including that further re-structures would be considered potentially
necessary for both the Strategy, Policy and Governance directorate and Resources
directorate. It was at that time set out that one of the aims of any future re-structure
would be to remove the matrix line management model implemented as part of the
‘Ignite’ Model in 2018, similar to that implemented in the Service Delivery directorate
structure.

Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) CLT

Chief Executive Officer
(Head of Paid Service) (P) CLT

Executive Assistant (G 1FTE)

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
(N) CL

Assistant Director: Assistant Director Assistant Director:
Customer Services | | Place & Community Planning &
& Operations (M) (M) Implementation (N) M) Govemance (M) Officer) (L) CLT P

Assistant Director: Assistant Director. Lead Specialist Chief Finance Officer
Strategy, Parinership Programmes, 3 Assistant Director | |(Section 151 Officer)
& Communications Performance & Legal (Monitoring Resources (M) (N)

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Further to the appointment of the Chief Executive in October 2024, Members raised
concerns over the effectiveness of the existing officer structure (which largely dates
to the ‘Ignite’ review and revised structure of 2019, with some limited changes since).
Members tasked the Chief Executive to continue with an organisational structure
review.

The Chief Executive engaged the LGA for support in evaluating the Council’s whole
structure, in particular the use of their DMA approach described in detail elsewhere in
this report. This approach has been successfully applied in over 400 organisations
and focuses on optimising factors such as spans of control and layers or tiers of
management.

As a result of the review by the LGA, which included extensive staff engagement, this
report seeks to inform Members of the Chief Executive’s proposed changes to the
staffing structure including realignment of some team responsibilities.

The proposed structure provides a clear opportunity to simplify the leadership team
structure of the Council. The Chief Executive currently has six direct reports, in
addition to the Executive Assistant. The Deputy Chief Executive has three direct
reports. The Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) is formed by the Chief Executive,
Deputy Chief Executive and the two Statutory Roles, Monitoring Officer and Section
151 (S151) Officer. Adding further complexity to the leadership of the organisation is
the CLT+ structure which additionally includes all six Assistant Directors.

Page 22



3.9

3.10

3.11

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

The proposals in this report set out a range of measures designed to simplify and
improve the overall structural efficiency of the Council and create a suitable basis
from which to approach the LGR proposals scheduled to be implemented in 2028.

The changes are driven by a clear focus on delivery of priority work to benefit
residents and open opportunities to deliver further value for money. A proposed
restructure of the Council is the first such whole organisational change programme
since the 2018 ‘Ignite’ changes were implemented.

This review is now timely and necessary following on from the Tier 1 review and was
identified as a need by Members through their Working Group during 2023 / 24.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION REVIEW

In response to the need for further structural changes identified by the Member
Working Group during 2024, the Chief Executive engaged the LGA to undertake a
review of the entire Council structure in January 2025. This review took place
between 17 February — 26 March 2025 with significant staff engagement. Ahead of
the review CLT+ were engaged with a separate briefing ahead of all staff, as were
Members.

The DMA approach is an Organisational Design tool used by the LGA, it is now used
in numerous councils of all types to identify efficient and cost-effective organisational
structures for the future. It is a robust, proven framework to help diagnose and design
healthy management hierarchies.

The DMA determines the number of organisational levels based on decision-making
accountability. The approach argues that only one layer of management is required
for each DMA level. It looks at the number of layers / tiers an organisation has and
what it needs in resource to deliver the aims and objectives of the organisation.

The DMA analysis begins at the Frontline (whether internally or externally facing
these are the roles at the ‘bottom’ of the hierarchy that do the core work of the
organisation). Each management tier in the hierarchy should add clear value to the
Frontline, or to the layer of managers below it.

The review was undertaken using DMA. As a result, the DMA suggests that the
Council should be a Level 4 organisation in line with other District Councils of
comparable size and ideally, should have no more than five layers from the frontline
to the Chief Executive post with a maximum of four levels of management /
supervision.

The review was internally branded ‘Have Your say’ and all staff engagement was
actively encouraged. Approximately 120 employees engaged with the LGA during the
review, 58% of total staff. The DMA conversations took place across all the
directorates and focussed on the areas which were found to be overlayered
(excessive tiers), siloed or needing review.

Although some isolated progress has been made in addressing structural issues
through a restructure in the Service Delivery directorate in December 2023, the DMA
review identified further changes needed to empower roles with greater autonomy
and decision-making authority at all levels within the organisation.

Employees engaged positively with the review, expressing the need for change in a
sensitive manner. Their passion for the Council and its residents was evident, as they

Page 23



4.9

4.10

411

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

described the Council as a supportive, caring, committed, and passionate
community.

The current structure of the Council is hindering organisational performance and was
likened to 'a jigsaw puzzle which doesn't fit'. While employees have a strong desire
for change, they are constrained by a hierarchical culture, lack of confidence, and
insufficient transparency and fairness regarding role identities, commenting on job
titles such as Specialist and Caseworker.

The Council's historical culture has led to individuals working on their own projects
rather than collaborating as One Council, which is particularly noticeable at the CLT+
level. The Chief Executive is steering the Council in a new direction, away from its
fragmented, siloed approach and adopting greater engagement with staff and
Councillors which is seen as ’a huge positive', and there are emerging signs of
improvement and ‘green shoots’.

As a result of the LGA review a proposed structure has been developed which is fit
for now and the immediate future and most suited to the needs of Maldon, the
proposed structure builds resilience, streamlines efficient working and seeks to
accommodate the challenges of LGR coming forward.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It should be noted that the primary purpose of the review is to support improved
effectiveness of the Council, however the proposed structure does result in an
estimated reduction in cost of the senior officers of the organisation. Proposals have
been reviewed by the S151 Officer, and a proposed structure is based on securing
the greatest improvements in the least time, with due consideration of the risks of
change.

The financial implications of the proposed restructure fall in three areas. These are:

. ongoing revenue budget implications affecting the base budgets for staffing

. one-off costs arising from the staffing changes

. one-off costs of independent external advice to support the process of the
review and planning for the implementation of the decisions agreed by
Members

Ongoing revenue budget implications are expected to lead to a reduction in overall
costs, which will be advantageous in future years through a reduction in known
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) pressures.

Any severance costs would be one-off payments and can be funded through
earmarked reserves, likely to be the transformation reserve. These should be
considered as supporting overall improvements in efficiency within officer structures
and the decision support processes of the Council.

One off cost of additional capacity, advice and support. This is essential to provide
resource capacity to deliver the transformation in a timely and sensitive way
benefitting both the organisation and the staff affected and will be funded using the
transformation reserve.

Page 24



5.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

8.1

8.1.1

8.2

8.2.1

Costs have been estimated based on likely costs assuming full implementation of all
proposals in the time frames suggested. Actual take up may change based on staff
responses and the timing of implementation.

NEXT STEPS

This implementation programme will be known as “Transforming Together”. This title
has been chosen to signify the way this programme of work is being delivered. It is
being done with staff, rather than to them, and there will be significant opportunities
for staff input at every stage. The changes will be delivered in line with the Council’s
Organisational Change and Redundancy Policy & Procedure and include
consultation with affected staff.

The Target Operating Model (TOM) defines how the Council should be structured
and operate. It provides a clear roadmap for how different parts of the Council should
work together to achieve its objectives. It promotes collaboration, streamlining
processes, and ensuring budgets and resources are optimised.

The Council’'s TOM will be structured based on the ‘Have Your Say’ findings and
developed in two phases.

CONCLUSION

This report provides the background to this review and on completion of the
implementation programme the new structure will be made publicly available.

IMPACT ON PRIORITIES AS SET OUT IN THE CORPORATE PLAN 2025 - 2028

Supporting our Communities

Efficient structures with staff clear on roles and accountabilities to support our
communities and partner organisations.

Delivering good quality services

The report gives the Council the basis to develop a new TOM for the authority which
will ensure its structure, processes and staff are able to deliver for the residents of
Maldon in the coming years, readying itself for LGR.

IMPLICATIONS

() Impact on Customers — Following the conclusion of this matter customers
will be able to more easily identify the role of officers and direct their enquiries
to the appropriate person. There is an identified risk of potential disruption
during the period of consultation and transition period after the conclusion.
This risk will be mitigated by ensuring individual changes to roles, including
any exits, are considered collectively to ensure any distribution is carefully
managed where possible. A clear engagement and communications plan with
the use of Local Government East Associates is also in place.

Page 25



(i) Impact on Equalities — An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out
and the impact of the proposal is neutral.

(iii) Impact on Risk (including Fraud implications) — Risk of impact on service
delivery during period of transition and bedding down new structure.
Mitigations through external independent support, and internal capacity and
management.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) — There are no financial implications in
relation to this report. However, there will be financial implications in relation
to the implementation of this proposal. These will be set out in a further
private and confidential report.

()] Impact on Resources (human) — The consequences of this report will have
a significant impact on some staff at the Council. Staff will be offered support
in line with change policies, Union, where a member, and 24/7 free and
confidential support from the Council’s Employee Assistance Programme
support.

(vi) Impact on Devolution / Local Government Reorganisation — Undertaking
this work will ensure that Maldon Council has a clear comparable structure
which will clearly define the roles of all staff. This will ensure that staff roles
can be clearly identified when considering local government reorganisation.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Doug Wilkinson, Chief Executive (HOPS).

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 10 July 2025
	Minutes
	 Appendix 1

	5 Council Structure Review
	8 Management of Resources
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


